| Tt
; | BEDFORD
ol COLLEGE
_—

GROLUP

f _w 'HH

y ANNUAL REPORT &
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

For the Year
Ending 31 July
2022




BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

MHCORFORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD DOLLEGE PROFESSIDMAL SERVICES LTD AND
ASTON RECRINTMENT AND TRAINRNG LTD)



BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(HCORPORATING BELFORD COLLBGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSMONAL SERVICES LTD AND
ASTOMN RECRINTMENT AND TRARBING LTO)

ey Management Personnel, Board of Govamors and Professlonal Advisers

Board of Govarnors

A full list of Governors is given on page 18-20 of these financial stalements, Mrs Rachel Nicol acled as
Clerk o the Corporation throughout the period.

Key management personnel

ey managemnent parsonnal are defined as members of the College Leadership Team and wers
reprasented by the following In 2021/22:

lan Pryce - Principal and CEQ; Accounling officer

Patricia Jones — Exacutive Director of Finance

Georgina Ager - Vice Principal (resigned 31 August 2022)
Emma Lowe - Vice Frincipal

Karen Campbal! - Vice Principal

Sarah Baler — Executive Director of Sabes and Marketing

Caroline Biddla - Exaecutive Directar of Human Resources
Sharaz Amin — Executive Director of Digital Transformation (appointed 04 May 202.2)

Principal and Registered Office

Cauldwell Streat
Bedford
Badfordshina
k42 SAH

Professional advisars

Financial statements auditors and reporling accountants
MHA Macintyre Hudson

2 London Wall Place

London, EC2Y SAU

Internal auditors

lec:a Education Training and Skills Limited {No 06638838)
11th Floor, MclLaren Houses

46 Priory Cusensway

Birmingharm, B4 7LR

Bartkers

Barclays Bank

111 High Street
Bodiond, ME4AD 1M

Sollcitors

Slone King LLP

3™ Floor, Bateman House, 82 — 88 Hills Road
Cambridge, CB2 1LO



BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
(INCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AN
ASTON RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING LTD}

Fage number

CONTENTS

Stratagic Repor 4
Statemen! of Corporate Governance and Intarmal Control 17
Statement of Regularily, Propriety and Compliance 28
Staterment of Responsibifies of the Members of the Corporation 29
Indepandent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements a0
Independent Reporfing Accountant’s Repart on Regularity 33
Consofidaled Statemant of Comprehensive Income and Expanditure a5
Consolidaled Siatement of Changes in Reserves 36
Consolidaled Balance Sheet as at 31 July 37
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows a8

Mates to the Financial Statemaents aq



BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
(MCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND
ASTON RECRUNTMENT AND TRAINIG LTD)

Strategic Report

OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY
The Governing body present their report and audited financial statements for the vear ended 231 July 2022,

Legal Status
The Comporalion was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of

conducting Bedford College, The College is an exempl charily for the purposas of Part 3 of the Charities Act
2011, The Corporation was incorporated a5 Bedford College.

Group Companies

Bedford College has three wholly owned subsidiaries, Bedford College Services Ltd, Bedford College
Profassional Sarvices Lid and Aston Recruitment and Training Lid, (incorparated July 2009, November 2015
arvd Jure 2004 respactively), the accounts of which are consolidated into this report.

Our Purpose

Ower the past 12 months the Callege has undertaken a soras activities wilh our stakeholder communitias (o
establish current and desired cullures. This work has enabled the College to establish a new five-year
sirategic plan with intent, vigor and values that our slakeholders hold dear. Our new purpose is

To help individuals, communities and sociaty fliourish through education by ralsing aspirations and reducing
inaquality to create a sustainable future,

Chuir Vision
To be the best and most authoritative post=16 educalor in the Soulh East Midlands.

Our Values
¥ pul the leamaer ai tha heart of all we do and our valuea reflect the manner in which we sat out io acheeve
thiis:

+ Student centred — AL our heart is always doing what is best for our students. Wa consider stedents in all
of our decision making lo create positive outcomes and memorable experences for every student.

+ Educational excellence — We promote educational excellence by delivering programmes that challenge
aur shedenls to achiave their ambitions,

# Teamwork — Wa are one leam who by working together can achieve great things, respecting the opinlon

and valuing the contribution each of us make.

Continuous improvement = We challenge ourselves o abways do batler by trying new things, sharing

knowledge, reflecting on practice and leaning from others.

= Garing —'We care about the wellbeing of our staff, our students, our community and wider saclety, crealing
an emvironment built on trust where we listen, engage with-and support aach other.

+ Inclusive = Wea celebrate diferences and diversity, recognizing thal we can kearn from each ather.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Qur Sirategic Objoctives to 2022

The College has a strategic plan for the period 2022-2027, underpinned by education and resourcs plans.
The Corporation monitors the performance of the sirategic plan by using the Tollowing three siralegec thamas:

+ Educational and Community Leadership
= Educational Sustainabifity
e Financial Sustainabdity

Sustainability and climate action aims

The College’s has davelaped a siralagy lo posilively respond 1o climate changa by regucing our impact an the
environment, helping to boost the economy through the delivery of green skills and inspiring our students and
staff to lackde climate action to achieve our goal to be a net zero organisation and a leader in sustainabity

practices by 2042,
The Collage’s Sustainabiity and Climate Action sims are 1o

= Todemonstrate clear leadership and governance In tackling climate change 1o foster a culture whera
staff and students care aboul sustainability and contineously improve their own and collective
practices.

* Toembed climate and sustainability education into the curriculum and wider anhancement activities 1o
enable young people and adults to develop the knowledge, skills, values and attiludes nesdad to
tackle clirmale change, and prepare them for grean jobs and the changing skillset required in their
chosan caresrs.

* Toprotect and enhance the natural environment by minimising our environmental impact from ouwr
estale and infrastrucluse.

= To develop and advance practices and hablts for sustainable procuremeant and respansible use of
resourcas throughout the supply chain,

» Tao become a leader and key influencer on sustainability matters within our internal and external
communitias and the wider FE.

Dverview of 2021-2022

Since the outbreak of the pandemic, we have continued to prioritise the safely of our learmers and staff
members as COVID10 remains but at lesser levels. We recognisad the importance of supporiing our leamers
in a broader sense also, the pandemic having increased hardship among our local communities we have
worked alongside other slakeholders to Increasa the resources avallable to mitigate some of these effects.

Key achievemants acrass the Group for the year are:

Susiained high levels of core student achievement recorded across the Group
Increased lavel of stalf satisfaction

The opening of the Modam Methods of Construction Centre

Continued outstanding financial health
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Strategic Report (continued)

Resources

This year we agreed new valuas for our College with sirong participation from our staff community, this work
and the focus on staff wellbeing resulted in high positive scores in a recent stalf survey. Bul the Collage has
also struggled to both retain and recruil staff as individuals take up more compatitive employment cpportunitios

elsewhera in whal is now callad the Greal Resignation’,

The Group has a five-year financial plan that demonstrates sound financial health over the fife of this
plan. The plan ks intended to maintain financial resilience in the organisation  anabling the Collega 1o resource
the strategic plan whilst malnfaining the Education, Skills Funding Agency financlal health grade of

"Cutstanding' .
The Group has various resources thal it can deploy In pursult of its strategic objectives including:

&= P146m of fived assats, £20m of current assets and £FBm of net assels, induding cash and cash

equivalents of E7m
= Employs 808 people (expressed as full time equivalents) of whom 630 are within leaching areas.
= B frechold campuses and 3 number of leasshold sites that ensble students fo frain in an

industry specific environmant

The Callege has a good repulation locally and nationally. Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the
College's success al altracting students and extemal refationships. The College enrolled 16,413 students.

The Callege sludent population includes:

5,944 16 to 18-year-odd studenis
1,828 Apprantices

T3 Higher educalion students
7440 Adult learmars

Stakeholders

In line with other Colleges and with unhversities, Bedford College has many stakeholders; it recognises  the
importance of thase relationships and engages Inregular communication. Stakeholders incuda:

its current, future and past students

its staff and thelr rade unions

public secior funding bodies

tha amployers it works with

local authorities

government offices and local enterprise partnerships (LEPs)
the local community

othier FE and HE instifutions

local schools

the professional bodies in the seclors where it works
Othar charitable organisations

& B O O F R R R W
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Development and Performance
Financial Performance Indicators

The College remains right ot the top end of the sector for fin
objeclives by monitoring 8 financial indicators, These in

ancial performance, assessing its financial
dicators (below) are measured monthly and are

discussed al Executive, the Resources Committee and (ha Corporation Board.
Key Performance Indicators for the 202922 2020721 202122
Group Dutturn (As per Dutiurn Increase |
the Financial [Reduction) yaar
Statements) ain year
Maowamert
Incoma E61.13m ESF.85m £3.28m
Operating surplus for the year
(after disposals and gain on Acquisition) £0.20m £0.89m (£0.65m)
Cash and cash equivalents £7.30m ET0.70m (£3.40m)
| Staff costs a5 a % of Income
| (incl. subcontract income) G s ki
Education seclor EBITDA (Eamings
before interest, lax, depreciation, 9.75% 14, 75% (5.00%)
amortisation) as & % of income o
Adjusted current rafio 243 1.99 0.44
Borrowing as a % of income T4.67% T6.34% 1.67%
Financial Health Grading Outstanaing Ourtstanding

The financial indicalors above for year ended July 2022 show that the College has performed well and that the

financial impacts of ensuring learmers have caught up following COVID have been managad.

Financial Results

The Group generated an operating surplus in

E61.1m (E57.8m in 2020/21)

The Coliege has three subsidiary companies,
Professicnal Services Lid (BGPS Lid) and Aston
Lid Is the supply of calering and venue sa

the curmeni
deficil in 2020021,

year, he surplus generated by BCS Ltd was

the year of £0.204m (E0.885m in 2020/21) with a total income of

Bediord College Services Lid (BCS Lid), Bedford College
Recrultment and Training Lid. The principal activity of BCS
rvices, whilsl BCPS provides the supply of professional and
adminisirative services whereas Aston Recruitment and Training LTD speciakse in Apprenticeship training. In
£81k for BCS Lbd (£80k deficit in 2020/21), £nil for
BCPS Ltd (Enil in 2020/21) and the deficit generated by Aston Recruftment and Training Lid was £31k (E44k
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Strategic Report (continuad)
Davelopmants
The College continues to invest in the capital programme wilh addiions during the year amounting fo £10.7m.

The development of the Modem Methods of Construction Centre at the Cauldwell sile recelved its first learmars
for the academic year 2021/22. The bullding designed o be zerp carbon, latterly won a national award for is
innovation ‘river water heating” sofution,

Following tha successful application of funding, developments are progressing well al the Badford Sixth Faorm,
8 prominent listed building in the heart of Badford, Works are being managed in 2 phases;

Phasa 1, the developmant of new teaching spaces alongside the upgrading of common rooms, bathrooms and
sludy spaces. Phase 2, removal of fossil fuel healing syslems, implemantation of air sowrca heal pumnps, ghazing
and insulation. Works that vl significantly reducs the carbon oulpa! of tha sile.

Resars

We recognize the need o maintain cash reservas, providing stabiiity In tmes of disruption, enabls the Group
o adjus its cost base or mesd unforesesn costs. Dur reserves enables the Groap o deliver its:

mission

programs

employrment

ongoing operalions

a source of mternal funds for organisational priorities

unplannad events
essential bullding repair and responding to unforeseen difficuliies
planned improvemant

programime opporiunity

capacity building

Cur managamen of resarves is guided by the preparafion of a rolling 5 year financial plan which takes accounl
of marke!, demographic and funding movements.

B & & & & @ & & & B8

Going concarn

Alter making appropriale enguiries, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate resources to
continue In oparational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going

concem basks in preparing the inancial stalements.

Sources of income

There is significant refiance on ESFA recurreni grants, in 2021/22 Further Education funding bodies
pravided 74% of the College’s total incoma [75% In 2020/21).
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Strategic Report (conlinued)
Cash flows and liquidity

There has been a decrease in cash, cash egquivalents and investments of £3.34m (2020021 inflow of £4.08m)
demonsirated in the Consolidated Statement of Cash fows

The acquisition of Tresham College induded the novation of 3 loans to Bedford College on the 1 August 2017
and as @l 31 July 2022 the valua of the outstanding loans amounled to £8.97m.

Treasury policies and objectives

The College has a reasury management policy covering the management of the College's cash flows, its
banking, monay marke! fransactions, the effective control of the risks assocated with those activities; and
the pursuit of aptimum performance consistent with thase risks.

Payment performancea

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts {Interest) Act 1998 requires Colleges, in the absence of agreement to
Ihe contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the provision of goods or services or the
date on which the involca was recalvad. The target sl by the Treasury for payrment to suppliers within 30 days
is 85 per cenl. During the accounting parind 1 August 2021 1o 31 July 2022, the Collage paid 87% (2020021
Ti%) of s Involces within 30 days. The Collage incumed no interest charges in respect of late payment for this
peerriod.

Student achievements

Overall limaly achievemant for Education and Training qualificafion groups is currently 79.6% wiich places
Bediord Collage 7.8% below the most recent (2018-19) national rate for General FE and Tertiary Colleges.
This rate is 1.6% below the 81.2% overall achievemant rate of last year,

Lewvel Group Mumber of Achievement Mational rate % Difference in
leavers rate % MNational rate %

16-18 All Levels 14,218 T7.8% B7.0% 8. 2%

19+ All Levels 9.007 82.4% 88.4% -6.0%

All Age and Levels 23,225 79,6% 87.4% -1.6%

The college has idantified a change in the profile of the 16 to 18 leamers and the impact COVID has had on
their parsonal and academic developmant. This has resullad in the acadamic abilily being impacled as well as
an increase in issues around menlal health and behaviours and skilis.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Curriculum developments

Thi College has continued to develop a wide range of pravision which has placed the Coliege as one of the
largest providers in the area. Owr strategic plan focuses on quality and meating the needs of the local
community. The Employer Engagement Strategy hes confinued to develop the fransactional and
transfarmational relationships with employers who conlinue lo support devedoping the skills and knowladge of

he studenis.

As a large provider of General Further Education, the College has been successful in delivering a range of
akernatively branded educational affers which mee! the needs of the community. A key focus of the College
is proparing students for the next stage of their lives, whether this is higher aeducalion or baing work ready.
Having clear insight through o higher education or employment, ancouraging our sludenis to have high

agpirations are importan parts of the College’s activity,

The College recognizes fhat studants have belter opportunitias for employment whan they achiove higher levels
of study, to supporl this progression routes are buill in to ease students through to achéeving higher level
qualifications, The work experience policy further enhances opportunities to do this either via thelr study
programme. With the introduction of T Levels within the College the foocus on work placement has been
expanded making leamers more work ready following the achievement of their studies.

Teaching, leaming and assessmenl continue to be a key focus for the College. There are increased
opporiunitias to share good practice and resources betwean teaching staff across the Group as well as a
drive on continued profassional development. Tha Callage encourages tha use of resaarch and scholarly
work, supporting bath its stalf to participate and other institutions in past-computsory education. \We aim to
ghare the excallent work that takes place in our sector In a way thal is accessible and readable and hope to
inspire others to parlicipate and lake control of their praclice and professionalism. This has resulted in the

appaintment of a Research and Development Manager in Seplember 2021.

Future developmeanis

The Corporation agreed the new S-year Stralogic Plan 2022 to 2027. This includes values of which all staff
have idenlified as impaortant to them as well as consultation on the overall siralegy.

As of 01 August 2022, the college restructured the college senior leadership leam to ensure a robust and
consistent approach to the Quality of Educations, leadership and management. 2 Principal posls have been
established covaring Bedfordshire and Morthamptonshire, supparted by 7 Campus Vice Principats.

The new siratagic plan shows growth over the Bfe of the plan, this will likely be growth through acquisition or
marger. In recent months the College has been in lalks with Central Bedfordshire College in connection o a

merger during financial year 2022/23.

T Levels continue 1o be a key part of the education offer with tha introduction of T Levels in Business and
Enginearing and Land based over the next 2 years. A £2 million pound project has been approved for Kingshill
Farm at Shuttheworth, delivering a zero carbon classroom block and a new mechanisation cenlre.

The refurbishment of the Tower Block at Cauldwell Street will see the redadding of the building, upgrading of
a numbser of floars and the inslallation of river water heating, making the building zero carbon, The project is

due to open in September 2023.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Future developments (continued)

In partnership with Corby Town Council the College is planning o open a skkth form college in the hear of
Corby. Funding granted from the Town Deal will support the redevelopmant of a dilapidated bulding, bringing
vibrancy, footfall and leaming into the town centre. The Carby Sixth Form s bering devalopad with the objectives
of achleving 2ero carbon and is due Lo open for September 2023,

Public Benefit

Bedford College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the
Secretary of State for Ecucation. The members of the Goveming Body, who are trustees of the charity, ara
dfisclosed on page 18-20,

In selting and reviewing the Caollege's strategic objectives, the Gaovaming Body has had due regard for the
Charily Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon ils supplementary guidance on the
advancement of educalion. The guidance ssis oul the requirement that all organisations wishing to be
recognesed as charithes must damonsirate, explicity, thal thelr aims are for the public banefit

I delivering its mission, Ihe College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancernant af education
to the |ocal communily. The College provides courses without change 0 voung people, o those who are
unemgployed and adulls taking English and Malhs courses. The College adjusts its courses to mest the needs
of local employers, providing skills and workplace training to appréntices. The College is commitied ta providing
infarmaticn, advice and guidance to the students i enrcls and to finding suilable courses for as many sludents
as possible regardless of their educational background. We focus on skills needed in our cormmunily and the
skills needed for our leamers to get good jobs, increase praspects and improve socal mability.

We also acknowledge that our bulldings and grounds are seen as community asseis by our local residents, We
take this seriously and wani o ensure we are good neighbors; our sites are well maintained and that our

community can feel proud of their local college.
Principal risks and uncertainties

The College conlinues o operate a system of intemal contral, including financial, cperational and risk
managament which is designed to proled the College’s learners, stalf, assets and reputation.

Based on the siralegic plan, the Execulive operating as the Risk Management Group undertakes a
comprehensive review of the risks to which the College Is exposed. They identify systems and procedures,
including specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential impact on the College. The internal
controls are then implemented and the subsequant year's appralsal will review thekr effectiveness and
prograss against risk mitigation actions. In addition to the annual review, tha Risk Managemant Group will also
consider any risks which may arise as a result of a new area of work baing undertaken by the Collega

Key risks are maintained at the College level within the Risk Register which is reviewed termly by the Audit
Commifiee. The Risk Register identifies the key risks, the Iikekhood of thosa risks occurring, thir potantial
impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are priorilised wsing
a consigtent scoring system. The Risk Register also includes thase risks associated with fulure

developments,

The Internal Audil Programme reflects key risks drawn from the risk register and the furtherance of strategic
aims identified in the Strategic Plan.

11
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Principal rizke and uncertainties {continued)

Outllined below is a descriplion of the principal risks that may affect the College. Mitigating actions ara
in place to manage the effects of the risks. Other faclors besides those fisted below may also adversely

affect the Collegea.

+ Risk of loss or lack of funding body incoms

& Risk of poor success or achigveman! performance mMeasures

+ Risk of changes to funding bedy data rules

These risks are mitigated through diversification of funding, ensuring the Collage is rigorous in delivering high

quality education and training and that rigorous dialagua is undertaken with funding body representatives.

Sireamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The Badford Caollage Group SECR Greenhouse Gas Emissions are presented according to guidance from
BEIS and the Energy Managers Aasociation. Figures have bean collated using Government Gas carbon
emissien multipliers, and applied to College date streams with the scopes (1, 2 and 3) balow.

¢ Sgope 1 —direc! emissions from fusls burnt frorm ownied or controlled sources.

s Scope 2 - indirect emissions from use elactricity
e Scope 3 - indirect amissions arising from upstream (supply) activities, or downsiream (waste

The college’s greenhouse gas emissions and enangy use for the period ane sal out below:

UK Greenhouise gas emisslons and energy use data
for the period

GEE mnsumﬂ.hn
Heating o4
College Vehicles
Total

Eluulmss mwﬂ I Bﬂplwaa d:mrrrad vahmtaa
Supply waber

Waste waler

Tolal

Total gross emissions in matric tonnes CO2

1 Augusl 1 August
20211031  2020t0 31
July 2022 July 2021
1,348 1,634

285 &7

H 24

1,664 2,025
1,274 1,631

T4 a5

4 4

T f)

as 46

3,023 3 To2
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Stralegic Report (continued)
Trada union Tacility time

The Trade Union (Facllity Time Publication Requirements) Regulalions 2017 require the Collage to publish
infarmation on facility time arangements for trade union officials at the Collage.

Numbers of employees who | FTE employee number
weare relevant period
2 o2

Parcentage of time Number of employees

0% 790

1-50%, 2

Tatal cost of facility time £4,006

Taotal pay bill E3B.67Tm

Percantage of total bill spent en tacility lime 0011%
o r =kl

Tima spant on paid trade unéon aclivities as | 1007

a percentage of lotal paid facility time

Gender pay gap reporling

The Bedford College Group is fully commilted o equally and diversity and employs people according to the
requiraments of the role, not accarding to gender and in 2020-21, 69% of successhul candidates identified as
female. The overall gender split 81 The Badford Coflege Group Is 37% males and §3% females, which mirmors
the nationai picture of the FE workforce (SIR 2018-2019 National figures for FE Colleges).

In April 2017 lagislation was introduced that requires all organisations who employ 250 or more people to report
Iheir gender pay gap based on either a snapshat of the workioree on tha 31st March or Sth April aach year.

The gender pay gap shows the percantage difference betwaan the average salaries of woman and men across
the entire workforce, Irrespective of role. It should ba noted that the gender pay gap Is differant from Equal Pay
which measures whether there is a diffarance in what men and women in spacific aquivalant roles are pakd,

Al the snapshol date of 31 March 2021, the statutory regulations applied {o Bedford College and Tresham
College as a merged organisation, Al the snapshot date of 5 April 2021, the slatutory regulations also applied
to Bedford Collage Professional Sarvices Ltd. The headeaunt for Badford College Services Ltd remaing below
250,

13
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Strategic Report (continued)

Gaender pay gap reporting (continuad)

Year ending 31 March 2021

Entity Bedlord College Badford Collage
Professional Services

Mean gender pay ga;!_ . 1.5% T.8%
Median gender pay gap 3.9% 96%
Mean bonus gender pay gap -37.5% 49.4%
_M_udiﬂn gendar bonus gap 0% 51.4%
Proportion of malesNernales receiving a 16. 1% (male) 10.5% (mae)

| bonus 12.4% (lemals) 5.1% {famale)

The graphs below show the proportion of males and famales in each quarlile pay band. The dala has been
calculated using the methodology set out in the Equalities Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations

2017,
Bedford College
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The Bedford College Group are committed to supporting and promoting equity of opportunity in all aspects of
college life, We encourage evaryona to embrace the differences they encounter here. Wa are home to people
from many cultures and backgrounds; and a range of beliofs and identities.

Qur college is strongly opposed to discrimination, unfaimess and injustice. We believe in trealing everyone
fairly and celebrating our differences. We do not lolerate language or behaviour that makes others
uncomfortable. This includes being Ireated differently because of any of the ‘nine protecied characteristics® of
the Equalty Act {2010) which are protected by law from diserimination (age, disabilily, raca, sex, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil parinership, pregnancy and matemity, refigion or bafief, and sexual
arientation). Alongside the Equality Act {2010) we have taken into consideration our commitment to the Public

Sector Equality Duty (2011).

14



BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(INCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, SEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIOMNAL SERVICES LTD AND:
ASTON RECAUITMENT AMD TRAINING LTD)

Strategic Report (continued)

Equal opportunities (continued)

The Callege’s Equality and Diversity Palicy Is manitored and implamented on a planned basis, and is publishecd
on the College’s intranet and website. The Collage has developed a Refigion and Balief policy, guidance for
supporting frans and gendaer non-conforming students and staff, an LGBTO+ Inclusion Action Plan and a Raca
Equality AcBon Plan.

The Colege's Single Equality Scheme gutlines the key priorities in terms of equality and diversity which are
underpinned by the Single Equality Scheme Action Plan. The College’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Committea, which s chaired by the Deputy CEQ and has cross-college representation, is imwohed in the
implamantation and moniloring of the impact of the Single Equality Scheme Action Plan. The Committee is
supportad by Diversily Ambassadors, Unily Forurn and four stall diverssly forums (Disability Advisory Group,
LGBTQ+ Staff Forum, Race Equality Forum, and Women's Matwark). The College publishes an Equality and
Diversily Reporl annually 1o ensure compliance with all relavant equalilty legislation. The College underlakes
equality impact assessments on its college wide policies and processas, Members of the Executive Teams act
a5 Execulive Sponsors for disabilily, LGETO+, ethnicity and womean.

The College has an Equality and Diversily training programme which is mandatory for all staff. Refreshar
training and updates are carried out as par of staffs professional developmant and all-staff events such as the

ennual stalf conferance,

The Bedford College Group i a 'Disability Confident’ employer and has committed to the principles and
chjectives of this standard. The College considers all employmenl  applications from disabled persons,
bearing in mind the aplifudes of the individuals contermed, and guaraniees an intendew to any disabled
applicant who meats the essential criteria for the post, Where an existing employes becomes disablod, every
effort i made 1o ensure that employmant with the Collage continues. The College subscribes to an indepandent
assistanca programmea which ls freg to all staff and offers support on @ wide range of wark, family and personal
Izgues, In-house counselling support is available to students and staff,

The College employs specialists to support students with leaming difficulties andlor disabilities, such as an
Autism coordinagtor, Deal and Hard of Hearing coordinator, Britizh  Sign Language
Communicators, and Student Support Assistants.  Specialist aquioment  including assistve technology
is available for use by sludents and staff,

Personal Tutoes In each curioulum area deliver individual and group Wiorials aimed to develop
students’ parsonal, social and employability skills, and provide support with a range of issues, for Instance,
when & student is rangilioning. The enhancement programme supports students” personal development via
health and wellbaing, siaying safe and equalily and diversity information and awareness. The College co-
ordinales student support groups such as LGBTOIA+, Transform, and Race and Cultura.
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ASTON RECRUITMENT AND TRAMING LTD)

Strategic Report (continued)

Disclosure of information to auditors

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report conlirm that, so far as they are each
awara, there is no refevant audit information of which the Colege's auditors are unaware; and each member
has taken all the steps thal he or she ought to have laken to ba aware of any relevant audit iformation

and to esfablish that the College's auditors are aware of that information,
b of the Corporation on 07 December 2022 and signed on its behall

Approved by order of 4
by:
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ASTON RECRUNTAEEMNT AND TRAIMING LTI

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The following stalament is provided to enable readers of the annual repart and accounts of the College 1o
oblain a better understanding of its govemance and legal structure, This statement covers the period from 1
August 2021 1o 31 July 2022 and up 1o the date of approval of the annual report and financial statemants.

The college endeavours to conduct its busingss:

1. in accordance with the seven principles identifiad by the Commitiee on Standards in Public Life
{s=lllessness, integrily, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesly and beadership);

4. in full sccordance with the guidance lo colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of Good
Govemnanece for English Caolleges ("the Gode™)

In the cpinion of the Govemors, the College complies with all the provislons of the Code, and it has complied
thraughaut the year ended 31 July 2022, This opinion is based on an intamal review of compliance with the
Code reporied 1o the Governance Commillee on 11 Movember 2022, The Governing Body recognises that,
as a body enlrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particutar duty to obaerve the highast standards
of corporate govemance at all imes. In carrying oul ils responsibilities, It look full account of The Code of
Good Govemance for English Colleges issued by the Assaclation of Colleges in March 2015, formally adopted
in Dacamber 2015 with the review carmied oul agains| the Code as amended in Seplembar 2021,

The Callege is an exermpt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011, The Governors, who
are also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charilies Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for
the Charity Commisgion's guidance on public benefit and that the required stalements appear alsewhere in
these financial statemenis
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BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(HCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFGRD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTI AR ASTON
RECRUITMENT AND TRAMING LTO)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

Itis the Corporalion’s responsibility lo bring independent judgement to bear on issues of sirategy, performance,
resources and slandards of conduct,

The Corporation is provided with reguiar and limely information on the overall financial perdormance of the
College logether with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital
expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related mallers such as haalth and safely and environmental isgues,
The Corporation meets at least ance a term.

The Carporation conducts its business threugh a number of committees. Each cormméllee has terms of reference,
which have bean approved by the Corporation. These commiltees are Audit, Resources, Cuality, Standards
and Achievement, Remuneralion, and Governance, Full minutes of all meetings, except those deamed 1o be
canfidential by the Corporation, are available on the Collage’s website at www.bedford.ac.uk or,from the Group
Director of Governanca at Bedfard Callege, Cauldwell Strast, Badford, Mi42 QAH,

The Group Director of Governance maintains & ragister of financial and persanal interasts of the govermors. The
register is availahla for inspection at the above addrese,

All governars are able (o take independent professlonal advice in furtherance of their duties at the College's
expense and have access to the Group Direclor of Governance, who ks responsible to the Board for ansuring
that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evatuation and remaovel of
the Group Director of Governance Is a malies for the Corporation as a whale.

The Group Director of Governancs is a sanior post holder and holds various relevant gualifications. The post
holder Is a non-practising solicitor (having a Law degree and post graduate diploma in lagal practica), |s a
member of the nstitute of Chartered Accountants England and Wales and is a Fellow of the Charered
Governance Institute.

The Board ensures that the Group Direclor of Governance recsives appropriate development threughout the
year including altendance at relevanl governance conferences., The post holder completed the Charterad
Govemance Institute's qualification programme, and was accepted as a Faliow, during the year. The Board
maumsﬂm1huMurmmmmnmmmmhﬂpmmemmmﬂm
as vica chair lo the AQC East Governance Professionals network.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to governors In a limaly manner, prior o Board meelings.
Govemnars have access lo a board porial for formal meating papers, induction, training and development
matarial, including links to webinars, In addition to mandatory safeguarding training govemnars are ivien accass
o ADC briefings, Induction sassions and the ETF Govermnor Development Programme,

During 2021-2022 governors have also accessed a range of networking and development activities including
the ADC Governance Conference and ADC Finance masterclasses. In November 2021 the Chalr toak part in
the Chair's Leadarship Programma run by the Institute of Directors in conjunction with ETF and Is taking part in
the ETF Chairs' Mentoring Programma. internal brisfings are provided on an ad hoc basls throwghout the vear
and during the annual Strategy/Development day and in 2021-2022 included briefings on Sustainabifity, SEND,
Culture & values and Employer engagement and links with local skills plans.

The Corperation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no indhvidual ar group dominales its
decislon-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship which could matarially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. There is a clear division of responsibility in that the role of the Chair and
Accounling Officer are separale.
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{INRCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, DEDroAD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTOMN
RECALITMENT AND TRAINING LTO)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

Appointmants to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are 8 matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole. The
Corporation has a Govemance Commillee, consisting of al least 4 members of the Corporation, which Is
respansible for the selection and nomination of any new external members for the Corporation’s consideration,
The Carporalion is responsible for ensuring that appropriate fraining is provided as required.

Mambars of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceading four years.

The Memorandum and Arficles of Bedford College Services (BCS), Badford College Professional Services
(BCPS) and Aston Recruitment and Training (Aston) provide for appointments to the relevant Boards lo be

approved by the Gorporalion,

The Corporation monitors terms of office and succession planning. Following adoption of the AOC Code of Good
Govarnance for English Colleges extamal members are initially appointed for a 4 year perlod with the potantial
for a re-appointment for a further 4 year period, The Comporation has commitied 1o only extend terms of office
bevond 8 years in axceptional droumstances,

Bedford College Academies Trust Limited and The Silverstone Academy Trust Limited are Trust arangements
for schools of which Bedford College is a Mamber, The terms of reference of both trusts provide for member
appaointments o their respeclive boards to be approved by the Badford Collage Corporation.

Corporation Performanca

The performanca of the Corporalion and its commiltess ks considerad annually in ling with the agreed Salf
Evalualion Stralegy to ensureé continued impraovement of the value added by this siralegic support. As part of
the Board's assessment of their performance the Board considars a range of avaluation mechanisms including
numericand narralive assessment against compelency-based statements, personal review and seli-assessmant
questionnalres, commiltes reviews againsd terms of referance and locussed questionnaires at intervals providing
for narrative feedback on areas such as tha quality of papers, appropratenass of commameant requinad, training
and development neads and personal ambilions,

Commiltees reflect on their performance and tenms of referonca aach year with 1he Audit Commities compleling
a nurmearically scored questionnaire measuring their effectivensss against their terms of referance.

A Chair's review was also camried ouwt In 2021-2022.

In 2021-2022 an inlemnal self-assessment review was camied oul based on the ETF board maturity malrix, A
detailed analysis was reviewad by the Govemance Commilles in June 2022 and presanted to the full board far
approvel of the action plan in July 2022, Areas reviewed included culture & behaviowrs, risk & awdit, skills,
stakeholder engagement, stewardship & standards and structure & business flow. Governors and mambars of
the exaculive team were askad o assess the performance of the board in the areas identified In terms of baing
fundamentally compliant, maturing & knowledgeable or as advancing / skiled. In all areas he mapority of
participants judged the board as elther maturing or advancing.
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AHCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFOAD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SEFVICES LTD AMND ASTON
RECRUITMENT AND TRAINBG LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

The survay identified some dominant themes for inclusion in the govermnance areas for Improvemnent for 2022-
2023. These were taken as those whare a greater proporfion of responses assessed governance as within the
fundamental calegory, where a number of different Individuals commented on the sama issue or whera the
theme was picked up across different categories. Key themes identified include:

- Stakeholder focus, linking governance to oulcomes and the student experience, bringing the
College into the centre of the communily elc.

- Skills, ensuring the right skills for delivery of tha stralegic plan, knowledge of education and
yvoung penple and development of an imclusive and cohesive board,

- Environmental, social and economic impact agreeing the sirategy and appropriate KPls for
maonitoring and establishing an appropriate framawork for intemal dacision making and external

FEporng.

In addition to the dominant themes the narrative resulls in the survey provided some useful suggestions
for consideration to improve governance which will be taken forward as part of tha committee work plans,

The Corporalion acknowledges the axternal Ofstad inspaction grading in Seplamber 2018 for Leadarship and
Governance as good overall, considering some areas as oulslanding whilst seeking to identify areas for
cantinuing iImprovemeant,

Committees reflect on their performance and lerms of reference each year with the Audit Committes
completing a numerically scored questionnaire measuring their effectiveness against their terms of referenca.

Remuneration Commithes

Throughout the year ending 31 July 2022 the College’s Remuneration Committes comprised five mambears of
he Corporation. The Committea, for the year ended 31 July 2022 had delegated aulharily from the Corporation
o consider and make recommendations 1o the Corporation in respect of the remuneration, terms and
condiions of employment and objectives of the Accounting Offcer and olher senior post-holders.
Recommandations in respect of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2022 were made to and approved
by the Conporation on 8 December 2021 following a mesting of the Commitles on 16 November 2021,

Datails of remunaration for tha year ended 31 July 2022 are set out in note 6 o the financial stalements.
Auidit Committea

The Audit Commiltes comprised 4 mambers during the year to 31 July 2022, (excluding the Accounting Officer
and Chair) Mambership included 1 co-opted member, The Commiltee operates in accordance with written terms

of referance approvad by the Corporation.

The Audit Commillee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College's intemal,
reporing accountants and financial statements auditors, who have access Lo the Commities for independant
digcussion, without the presence of College management, The Commities also recefves and conslders reparts
from the main FE funding bodies as they affect the College’s business.

Tha Collage’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk managemant contrals and governance
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of inpul and report thedr findings 1o managemaeanl and the Audi
Commitbas,
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(HCORPORATIHG BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LT, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSO0MAL SIAMICES LTD AND ASTON
RECARUMMENT AMD TRAINING LTD)

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

Management ks responsible for the implementation of agreed audil recommendafions and intemal auwdit
underiakes periodic follow-up reviews o ansure such recommendations have baen implementad. The Audit
Commitles also advises the Corporation on the appaointment of internal and financial statement auditors and
their remuneration for audit and nan-audit work as wall as reporting annually Lo the Corporation.

Governance Comimilles

The Governance Commitiee consisted of 7 mambers throughout the year (excluding tha Accounting Officer) and
oparates in accordance with the wrillen terms of reference approved by the Corporation.

The Committes meais at least bwice annually and is responsible for advising the Corporation an the appointment
of external govemnors and on mallers conceming the smooth running and best corporate governance of the
Corporation such as the size of the Board, the Board's own rules and procadures, training for governors,
evalualion of the Corparation and the appaintment of office bearars.

During 2021-2022 the Commiltes conlinued o ovarses implementation of the Community Engagemeant Action
plan to support enhanced owersight by the Boand.

In the year ended 31 July 2022 the Commillee met 3 times.

Resources Committea

The Resources Commities consisied of 8 mambers throughoul the year (including the Accounting Officar) and
oparates in accordance with the wrillen terms of reference approved by the Carporation.

The Commities meets at least termly and is responsible for monitoring the College’s finance, accommadation
and capital expenditure, advising the Board on solvency and the safaguarding of assets, approving capital
expenditure, wrile offs [under delegated authorly), people management and developmen! policies and
procedures; ensuring compliance with employment legislation and good practice and overseaing policies and
work promating the safely and well-being of staff,

Cuality, Standards and Achlevemant Commitias

The Quality, Standards and Achievement Commities consisted of betwean 8 and 10 members during the year
{including the Accounting Officer) and operates in accordance with the terms of reference approved by the
Corporation,

The Committes meets at least once a term and i3 responsible for briefing the Baard on the quality of education
provision at the College, the student experience (including safeguarding and equality and diversity), and (o have
oversight of qualily processes,

Internal control

Scope of regponsibiiy

The Corporation s ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, However, such a system 5 designed o manage rather than eliminate the rsk of fallure to achiowe
business oblectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matesial misstatament

or loss.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

Tha Corporation has dalagated tha day-to-day responsibility to the Principal and Chiaf Exacutive, as Accounting
Orlficer, for maintaining a sownd system of intarmal control that supports the achisvemeant of the College’s policies,
aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assats for which he is personally responsible, in
accordance wilth the responsibiliies assigned to him in the Financial MemorandumdFinancial Agresment
between Bedlord Collage and the funding bodies. He B8 also responsible for reporting to the Corparation any
miaterial weaknesses or breakdowns in intemal condral,

The purpose of the system of Internal control

The system of intermal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than lo efminate all risk
of failure to achisve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolule
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and priortise tha riska to the achisvement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the Frelihood of
thosa risks baing realisad and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of intarmnal control has been In place In Bedford Collage for the year ended 31
July 2022 and up lo the date of approval of the annual report and acoounis,

Capaciiy to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is expased together with the operaling, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemanted to mitigate those risks.

The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal engoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the College's significan! risks that has been in place for the year ending 31 July 2022 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularky reviewad by the Corporation.

The rigk and contral framewarlk

The system of internal controd is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative

procedures including the segregation of dulies, and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it

includes:

# whmhﬂ budgeting systems with an annual budgel, which s reviewed and agresed by the gowerning
Y

+ regular reviews by the goveming body of periodic and annual financial reporls which indicate financial
performance against forecasts

& satling targels o measure financial and other performance
o clearly defined capital investment control guidelines
» the adoplion of formal project management disciplines, whera appropriata.

Badford College has an inlernal audit sendce, which operates in accordance with the requiremeants of the ESFA's
Post 76 Audit Code of Practcs, The work of the internal audit senice is informed by an analysis of the nsks to
which the College |z exposed, and annual infernal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks
and the internad awdit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit Commitiae. Al
& minimum, annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA] provides the governing body with a repart on inlermal audit
activity in the College, The report includes the HIA'S independant opinion on the adequacy and effactivenass of
tha Collage’s system of risk management, controls and govermancs procesaas.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Contreol (continued)

Responsibilities under funding agreements
The Corporation recetves assurance on compiiance with the contractual responsibllities under the Collage's

funding agreement through a detalled annual work plan and allocation of relevant respansibilities for scrutiny lo

commitees under their lerms of reference. Compliance for funding purposes is included in a comprehensive
internal audit programme and key risks are monitored both by the Audit Committee and the full board at each

rriseling.

Statemaent from the audit commitlee

The sudil commilles has advised the board of governors that the corporation has an effactive framework lor
governance and risk menagement in place, The audit commiftea believes the corporation has effactive inlernal
eonirals in place,

The spacific areas of Intemal awdit work reviewed by the audil commillee in 2021/2022 werea:

HR & Payroll

Leamer suppart

GDPR and data profection

Counter solutions and cashiess operations
ESFA mock funding awdit

Risk managemant

+ Capital Strategy and achieving value for money

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officar, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the affectiveness of the system of internal
control. His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is infarmed by:

® B & 8 & W

o the work of the internal suditors

s the work of the executive managers within the Collage who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the infarnal control framewark

« pommaents made by the College's financial statements and regularity auditors, in their management letlers
and othar reparts.

Tha Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the resultl of his review of the effectiveness of

tha system of internal contral by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of the intemal auditar and athar
sourcas of assurance, and a plan to address woaknesses and ensure continugus improvement of the system is

in placa.

Tha saniar managemant team and the Audit Committes also receive regular reports from infernal audit and ather
saurces of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement. The Audit Commiitee’s rola in this araa
is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for intarnal control. The Corpeoration's aganda includes a
ragular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the senior management team
and tha Audit Commitles, The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and nol mensly
reporting by exception. At s December 2022 meeting, the Corporalion carried out the annual assessmeant for
the year ended 31 July 2022 by considering docurmentation from the senlor management team and internal

audit, and taking account of evenis since 31 July 2022,
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control {continued)

Basad on the advice of the Audit Commillea and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinlon that
the College has an adequate and affective framework for governance, risk managament and control, and has
fulfilled s statulory responsibility for “the effective and efficiant use of resources, the solvency of the instiution

ard the body and the safeguerding of thair asseds”,

Signed

. K

lan Pryce
Am:mmﬂngﬂﬂﬁl:ar
07 Decamber 2022
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Statement of College’s Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

The Corporation has considerad s responsibility 1o notify the Education and Skills Funding Agency of matarial
iregularity, impropristy and non-compliance with terms and condiions of funding, under the granl
funding agreement and contracts with tha ESFA. As pant of our consideration we have had due regard to the

grant funding agreements and conbracts with the ESFA.
We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enguiry, and to the best of our knowledge, we are able to

idantify any material rregular or improper usa of funds by the Callege, or material non-compliance with the terms
and condltions of funding under the Collage’s grant funding agreements and contract with the ESFA,

We confirm that no instances of material imegularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have baen discovered
to date. Il amy instances are identifed after the date of this stalement, these will be natified to te ESFA,

Signed
s

lan Pryce
Accounting Officer

Signed

07 December 2022 07 December 2022
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

Thw members of the Corporation, as charity trustees, are required to present audiled financial statements for
each financial year,

Within tha terms and conditions of the Coflege's grant funding agreamants and contracls with the ESFA, the
Corporation, thwough Rs Accounling Officer, B required to prepare financial statements and an operating
financial review for each financial year in accordance with the Statement of Recommendad Practice —
Accounting for Further and Higher Education, ESFA's College accounts diréction and the UK's Generally
Accepled Accouning Practice, and which give a true and fair view of the state of afairs of the College and iis
surplus of income over expenditure for thal period.

In preparing the financial statemants, the Corporation is required to;

s salect suilable accounting pollcies and apply tham consistentty

= makejudgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

« state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject 1o any matarial depariures
disclozed and explained in the financial statements

= prepare fmancial statements on the going concemn basks, unless it B inappropriate 10 assume that the
College will continue in operation,

The Caorporation is also required to prepare 2 Siralegic Report which describes what [t Is trying to do and how it
is going about B, including the legal and administrative status of the College.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy
al any time, the financial position of the College and which enable it to ensure that the financial stalements are
prepared In accordance with relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and
Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting standards, It is responsible for laking steps thal are reasonably
open to it to safeguard ils assels and to prevent and detect fraud and other imegularities,

The Corporation i3 responsibla for the maintenance and integrity of the College website; the work carried oul
by tha auditors does nol involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occumed fo the financial slatemants since they were indially
prasented on the websile. Legisiation in the United Kingdom govemning the preparation and dissemination
ol finantial stalements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the Cosporation are responsible for ansuring that expendilure and income are applied for the
purposes ntended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform o the authorilies that govern
them. In addition they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA are used only in acoordance with
the ESFA’ financial memorandumfunding agreement with the ESFA and any other condiions that may be
prescribed from time to time. Members of the Carporation must ensure that there are aporopedale financial and
managarment controls in place in order to safeguard public and other funds and o ensure they are used
proparly. In addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for securing economical, efficient and
effecthve management of the College's rescurces and expenditure, so that the benefils that should be derved
fram the applcation of public funds from the ESFA are nol pul at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 7 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Bedford College
Year ended 31 July 2022

Opinion
We hava audited the fnancisl statements of the Corporation of Bedford College (the ‘College’) and ils
subsidiarias {the 'Group’) for the year ended 31 July 2022 which comprise the consolidaled and college
statemant of comprehensive income and expendilure, the consolidated and collage stalemaent of changes in
rasarves. the consolidaled and college balanca sheel, the consolidated statement of cash flows, the principal
accounting policies, and the noles to the financial staternents, The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in thelr preparation s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reparting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Raporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland” (Uniled
Kingdom Genarally Accepted Accounting Praciice). In our opinion, the financial stalements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and College’s affairs as at 31 July 2022 and of its Group
and College surplus of expenditure over income for the year then ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Praclice and the Statement of Recommended Practica: Accounting for Further and Higher Education.

Basls for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auddting (LK) {13As {UK]) and applicable
law. Our responsibilitias undar those standards are further dascribed in the Auditor's regponsibilifies for the audit

al the financial stataments section of our report. Wa are indapendant of the College in accordance with the
ethical requiremeants that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in tha UK, including the FRC's

Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our othar ethical responsibdities in accordance with these requirements.
We beliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate o provide a basis for our

opinion.,
Conclusions relating to going concerm

In auditing the financial statemants, wea have concluded that the Corporation's use of the going concem basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial stalements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performad, we have not identified any material uncentainties relating o events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College's abifily to conlinue as a
going concarn for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are aulhorized for isswe,

Our responsibiliies and the responsibiliies of the directors with respect to going concermn are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other informatian

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial stataments
and our auditor’s raport thereon, The Corporation i responsibile for the other infarmation. Our opinion on the
financial slatements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do nol express an audit opmnion
or any farm of assurancg theraon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibifity is to read (he other information and,
in daing S0, consider whethar the olher information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowiedge obtainad in the audit, or otherwise appears o be materially misstated. If we identilfy an apparent

material inconsistency or material missiatement, we are required to perform procedures fo conclude whether
there is a material misstatament of the financial statemants or a malerial misstaterment of the other infarmation.
if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 8 material misstaterent of this other

30
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informalion, we are required to report that fact.
We hava nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we ara required to report by exceplion

We have nothing 1o report in respact of the fallowing matters in relation to which the Post 16 Audil Coda of
Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to repart to you if, in our opinic,

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
= the financial stalements are nat in agreament with the accounling records and raturna: or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for sur audit

Opinlons on ether matters prescribed in the Office for Students” Accounts Direction
In cur epinion, in all material respects

+ Tunds from whatever source administered by the corporation for specific purposes have been propesly
applied o those purposes and, if relevant, managed in accordance with redevant legiskation;

* funds provided by the Offica for Students and the Education and Skills Funding Agency have been applied
in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions.

Undar the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction. we are required 1o report to you, If we have anything to repor
in respact of the following mattars:

* The corporation’s grant and fee income, as discksed in note number 2 to the financial stataments, has
been materially misstated: or

o  Thi corporation’s expenditure on access and paricipation activities for the financial year, as disclosad in
nate nurmnber 7a to the financial stalements, has baan materially misstated

We have no matters to report arising from this respongibllity,
Responsibifities of the Corporation of Bedford Callegn

As explained more fully in the Statement of Corporation Responsibiliies on page 29, the Corparation iz
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a tnse and fair
view, and for such internal cantrol as the Corporation determine is necessary o anable the preparation of
Enancial statemants that are free from material misstatemant, whether dua to frawd or error.

In preparing the financial siatements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the Collage's ability o continue
a5 a going eoncarn, disclosing, as applicable, matiers ralated io going concemn and using the going concam
basis of accounting unless the Corporation aither intends to liquidata the College or to cease aperatons, or have
no reakstic akamative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities fer the audit of the financial statements

Our objectves are to cbiain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial stalemenls as & whole are free
from material misstatement, whather dua 1o fraud ar emor, and to isswe &n audiors report thal includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance bt ks nat a guarantea that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a malerial misstatement when it axisis. Misstalements can arisa
from fraud or error and are considered materlal if, indrvidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users takan on the: basis of these financial slatamanis,

a1
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frregularities, including fraud, ane Instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with owr responsibilibes, oulined above, to detect matarial misstatamants in respact of imegularities,
including frawd. The extent to which our proceduras are capable of datecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed balow:

»  Enquiry of managermeni, those charged with governanca and the Corporation’s solicitors asound actual
and potential liigation and claims;

« Enquiry of Corparation staff in tax and compliance functions to identify any instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations;

»  Performing audit work over the risk of management override of cantrols, including lesting of journal entries
ang ather adjustments for appropriateness, evalsating the business rationale of significant transactions
outside the normal coursa of buginess and reviewing accounting estimates for blas.

» Reviewing minutes of meatings of those charged with governance;

= Reviewing Interna| audit reports,

# Reviewing financial statemant disclosuras and lasting to supporting documentation to assess compliance

with epplicable laws and regulalions.

Because of the inherent imRations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all Imegularities, including
thosa leading to @ material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation, This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or reguialion |5 removed from the evends and transaclions
reflected in the financial stalemeants, as we will be less Fkely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud invobes
intentional concaalment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresantation.

A further descriplion of our responsibilities for the audit of the finandal statements s located on the Financial
Reporting Council's websie at www frc.org.ukisuditorsresponsibiities. This description forma part of our

Budilor's repart.
Use of our report

This report is made salely to the Corparation, as a body, in accordance with the College's Articles of Government
funding agreemient published by tha Education and Skills Agency and our engegament latter. Our audil work
has been undartaken so that we might stata to the Corporation those matlers we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no ofher purpose. To the Tulest extent permitted by lew, we do nol accapl of
assume responsibilily to anyone other than thi College and the Corporation as a body, for our audit waork, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formead,

M H Hﬂ.cﬂ}dr'— Lz 200 s

MHA Macintyre Hudson
Charered Accountants and Registered Auditor
Londan, United Kingdom

Date 28 December 2022
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Te: The Corporation of Bedford College and Secretary of State for Education acting through the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (“the ESFA™)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement latter and further to the requirements and condiions of funding
in the ESFA’s gran| funding agreemants and conlracts, or thosa of any other public funder, we have carted out
an engagement to obtain limiled assurance about whether anything has come to ouwr attention that would suggest
thatin all material respects the expendilune disbursed and Income recaived by tha Caorporation of Bedford College
duning the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have nol been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament
and the financial ransactions do not conform to the autharitias which govern them.

The framawark that has bean applied is set out In the Post-16 Audit Code of Practics (“the Coda®) msued by the
ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding conceming adull education notified by & relevant funder.

This report [s made solely to the Corporation of Bedford Collage and the ESFA In accordance with the terms of
our angagemant keller, Cur work has been undertaken so thal we might state to the Corporation of Badford
College and the ESFA those matlers we are required lo state in a repart and for no other purpose. To the fullest
axtent permilled by law, we do not accepl or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporalion of
Badford College and the ESFA for our work,, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Corperation of Bedford College and the reparting accountant

The Corporation of Badford College Is rasponsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher Education
Act 1982, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed,
and income recelved, ane applied for the purposes intended by Parfament, and tha financial transactions conform
to the authorities which govem them.

Our responsibilifies for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and reporl in accordance with our engagement letter and the
reguirements of the Cade. W report to you whether anything has come to our attention in camying out ous wark
which suggests that in all material respects, expanditure disbursed and income received during the pariod 1
August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have not been applied to purposas intandad by Parfiament or that the financial
Iransactions do not conform to the authoriies which govern them.

Approach

We conducied our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a imited
assurancs engagaemaent as defined in that framework,

The objective of a limiled assurance engagement s 1o perform such procedures as to oblain information and
explanalions in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negalive conclusion on

reguiarity.
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Reporting accountant’s assurance reporl an regularity (continued)

A [imited pssurance engagement is mora Bmited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequantly doas nol enable us to oblain assurance that we would bacome awara of all significant matters that
might be idemified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do nol express a positive opinion,

QOur engagement includes examination, on a lest basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the College’s
income and expendibure,

The work undariaken 1o draw to our conclusson includes
a An assassment of material irmegularity and impropriety across all of the Gollege's activities;

& Further testing and review of sell-assessmant gquestionnalre inclading inguiry, identification of canbrl processes
and examination of supporting evidence across all areas identified as well as additional verification work whenz
considerad necessany; and

» Consideralion of evidence ohtained through the work deladed above and the work completed as part of our
financlal statements audit in ordar to suppart the regularity conclusion.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come 1o our allention which suggests that in all material respecis the

expendilure disbursed and income received during the period 1 Awgust 2021 to 31 July 2022 has nol bean
applied to purposes intended by Pariament and the financial transactions do not conform to tha authorities which

gowvem tham.
Mk Heed Mg L o

MHA Macintyre Hudson
Chartered Accountants and Registared Auditor
London, United Kingdom

Date 23 December 2022
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Mobes Year anded 31 July Year ended 31 July
2023 2022 202 2021
Group Caollege Group  Collage

E£0:040 £'0:00 £'000 £000
INCOME
Funding basly granis 2 45,048 45048 43,538 43,539
Tuitian fees ard sducalion conlraste 3 12,220 12,181 12,096 12,076
Oiher incomis ! 3487 2,256 2,002 1,362
Gain on acquisition 26 - - 148 -
Endowsrnant and investment incama 5 358 FC 3 1 &
Total Incoms 61,132 o0, 226 £7.848 57,097
EXPENDITURE
Stafl costs & 3B.6TT AT 481 36,148 35,110
Diher operating cxpenses T 15,325 15,707 13,554 14,263
Depracialion 11412 5729 5 T16 5014 5,007
Inlzrest and oiber financa cosis ] 1.231 1.231 1,187 1.197
Total expanditiing G, Be2 60,105 86,361 55,577
Surplus bafore other gains and losses 170 121 1,485 1,520
ProfitfLoss) on disposal of assets 12 34 a4 (B00) (G0
Burplus bofore tax 204 155 BAE 220
Taxaticn g9 = - -
Surplus for the year 204 155 BAS5 w20
Rgiuisrial gaind{loss) In respect of pensions 23 38,120 38,120 1,883 1,883
achAmes
Total Comiprehensive Income for the year 34.324 3g,275 2,768 2,B03

The statemant of eomprehansive incoma is in respect of continuing activites
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Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves

Group
Balance af 1st Auguat 2020

Surplusideficit]) fram (e incoma and expencilung Socoun
Ciiher comprahansis Income

Transfers batwaan revahfion and noome and
expandiune resorees

Balance at 315t July 2021
Surplusi{dedicit) fram the income and expendilure account
Cdsar comprahenshng incoma

Transfers batwaan mvaluation and income ant
expandiunse resenes

Tatal comprahenshve Income for the year

Balance at 31st July 2022

College
Balanca at 15t August 2020

Surplusd{daficit) from tha incoms and expendiiune accolnd
Oither comprehanshe income

Transfers batwean revaluation and ncome and
axpenditure resensaes

Balance at 31s1 July 2021
Surphusi{deficit) from the income and expendilune secount
Cthar comprehenshe incoms

Transfess betwaen revaluation end ncome and
CAPENIELNG NeSErves

Tatsl camprahensive Incoms for the year

Balance at 31 July 2022

Incoma and Revaluation Tkl
Expencliture TEsErve
account
£'000 £'000 £'000
20,053 14,220 43,282
ERE 885
1,882 . 1,583
141 (141} -
31,062 14,088 46,050
204 - 204
38,120 : 38,120
1 {129) =
38453 (129) 38,324
70,416 13,058 84,375
28,844 14,220 43,173
2 5 420
1,883 z 1,883
141 {141) S
31,888 14,008 45976
155 155
38120 38,120
128 {129
38,404 (28] 38,275
70,281 13,950 84,250
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Balance sheets as at 31 July

Blotes Group College Group College
2022 202 201 Fiikg|
£r0aa £°0:00 E°040 E'00d
Fixad assels
Intangible assats 1" 834 234 578 575
Tangibla fxed sssals 12 T, 106 144,036 140,503 140,487
Inwesiment Proparty 12 1,200 1,200 - -
148,143 146,120 144,078 141,042
Curront assels
Siocks 23 213 238 214
Trada and olher receivables 14 10,884 10,688 E.109 B.0ar
Investmanls 15 2005 2,005 3,005 3,005
Cash and cash equivalants 20 7,351 7044 10,635 10467
20,471 19,951 19,048 18,728
Less: Creditors = amounts falling dus within
CNE Yiar 18 (11.483) (71,727} {12,312) 112,004)
Mel current assals 8,008 8,624 B,736 Glid
Total pssets less current Habilities
155,152 154,044 147,814 147 6846
Less: Craditons = amounls falling dus after more
Ehan one ysas 17 (B8, BET) (E8.84T) {60, 405) {64 405)
Provisions
Defined Lonefil obligatiors 18 o 0 (3EETT) (35677
Dilapidations 19 {1,087) {1,087) {1.027) {1,027}
Othar provisions 19 (B03) (Ta0) (E85) (€01}
Total net assets 84,374 B4,250 46,050 45 578
Unrestricted reserves
Income and axpendilure account 70,416 Ti,261 31,862 31,888
Ravalualion fesers 13,958 13,858 14,088 14,0488
Total unrestricted reserves 74 48,050 45,976
The financial slalaqangs on gdage 35 to 67 were approved and autharised for issus by e Corporation on 07
Decembear 3 el werpSigned on its behall on that date by
._ .
Allan Sch lan Pryce
Chair - Accounting Officer
07 December 2 07 December 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Gash Flows

Haotes 2022 2021
£'000 £raon
Cagh inflow from aperating aciivitins
Surphes for the year 10 204 BES
Surphis from acquisition = (148}
Adjustment for nen-cash items
Dapreciation 11412 §.720 5018
Decreasefincresse) in stocks 2 {42)
Decresse in debiors i4 (6,7 75) {1,814)
Increass in craditors 16 & 17 41156 12,005
INCrEass i proSons 208 (a7}
Penalons cnsis leas contibutions payaltils 23 2443 2134
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Invastmant incamae 5 (358) (1)
Inlerest payable ] 650 673
{Profil}iLoss on sale of fixed assels 12 (34} 600
Met eash flow from operating activities 7491 16,218
Cash fows from Investing activitles
Proceads from sele of fied sssats H -
Imsasiment incoma 5 358 i
Wewefwithdrawal) of daposits 15 1,0d4 -
Paymanls made 1o poguirs fixed assats 11442 [10,704) {13,621)
Cath and cash equivalants received from acquisifion 26 - 133
(9,402) "~ (13,487)
Cash flows from financing activities
Imtarest paid ] {650) {673}
Repaymants of amounts barrowed 16&17 {483) (D84}
{1,133} {1,637)
ncrease Incash and eash eguivalents in the year (3,34.4) 4,084
Cesh and cash eguivalents ai beginning of tha year 20 10,685 BE11

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 20 7.a51 10,885
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Motes to the Accounts
1 Statement of accounting Policios and estimation taechnigues

The following -Elr."l:a'.'n.ﬂlﬂg palicies have baen applied consistantly In dealing with ilems which are considerad
matarial in relation 1o the financial statsments

Basis of preparation

Thase financial stalaments have been prepared in accordance with the Stalement of Recommendad Practice:
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 {the 2018 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Diraction for
2021 fo 2022 and in accordance wilth Financial Reporting Standard 102 ~ “The Financlal Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of lreland” (FRS 102), The college is & public benefil entily and
has therafore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102,

The preparation of financial statermnents in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. Il also requires management io exarcise judgemant in applying the College's accounting
policias,

Basiz of accounting

The financial statements are prapaned in accordance with the historical cost convention as modified by the usa
of previous valuations deemed as cost al ransition for ceriain non=current assets,

Basis of consolldation

The consolidated financial stalements include the Colloge and s subsidiares, Bedford College Sendces
Limited and Badford College Professional Services Lid and Aston Recruitment and Training Ltd. The results of
subsidianies acquired during the period are included in the consolidated income and expanditura account from the
date of acquisition. Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation. All financial stalemenis
are mada up o 31 July 2022,

Going concern

The activities of the College, togelher with the faciors Bkely lo affect its fulure development and parformance
arg sal oul in the Operating and Fingncial Review. The financial posifion of the Collage, s cash flow,
liquidity and borrowings are described in the Financal Statemenis and accompanying Notes.

The College currantly has £8.967m of leans outslanding, shown in nale 18, novatad through the acquisition of
Tresham Coliage for Further and Higher Education in August 2018,

The College’s foracasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing
facilty and covenants for the foresesable fulure, Accordingly the College has a reasonable axpectation that it
has adequate resources to continue in operafional existence for the foreseeable fulure, and for this reason will
conlinua to adop! tha going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Stetements.
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Hotes to the Accounts {continuad)
1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation technigues {continued)

Recognition of Income

Ravenue grant funding

Governmenl revenue grants include funding Body recurrant grants and ofher grants and are accounted for
under the accrual mode! as permilted by FRS 102, Funding body recurrent granis ara measunaed in fine with
best estimatas for the period of whal is receivable and depend on the paricular income stream imabved. Any

urrdar achigvemeant for the Adull Education Budget s adjusted for and reflacted in the level of recurrent grant
racagnised In the income and expenditure account. The final grant income ks normally detarmined with the
conclusion of the year end reconciliation process wilh the funding body following the year end, and w results
of any funding audits, 16-18 leamer-respansive funding is nol normally subject to reconciliation and is therafare

not subject to contract adjustmenis,

The recurrent grand from OFS represants the funding allocatians atirbutable to the currant inancal year and
Is creditad direct to the Siatement of Comprehansive Income.

Where par of a govemment grant 5 deferred, the defered element i3 recognised as delermed income
within creditors and allocated batween creditors due within one vear and credilors due after more than one year

as appropriale,
Granis {including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised In incoma whan tha Collage

is anfitled to the income and performance relaled conditions have been mel, Income received In advance of
performance related conditions being med is recognised a5 deferred incomea within craditors on the balancs sheat

and releasad to income a5 the conditions are med,

Capital grant funding

Government capital grants are capitafised, held as defamed income and recognised in income ovar the expecied
useful [ife of the assel, under the accrual model as permited by FRS 102, Other, non-governmental, capital
grants are recognisad in income when the collaga is entitled 1o the funds subject to any parformance relatad
condilions being mel. Income raceived in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised
as daferred meome within craditors on tha Balance Sheat and ralsasad o incomea as conditions ara met.

Foe income

Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expanditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the
period for which it is receivable.

Investment incoma

Al income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and ecpandiure accound in tha period in
which it s eamed on a recehvable basis.
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Motes to the Accounts {continued)
1 Statoment of aecounting Policies and estimation technigques (continued)
Agency arrangements

The callege acts as an agenl in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds and any other
arrangements. Related payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students
are excluded from the income and expenditure of the college where the college is exposed to minimal risk or
enpoys minimal economas banafil relaled to the transaction,

Accounting for post-employmaent banefits

Post-employment benefils to employeas of the Collage are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Thess are defined benafit plans, which
are axtemnally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pension,

Teachers® Pension Scheme

The TPS is an unfunded schema, Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as fo spread the cost of pensions
over amployees’ working lives with the Coflege in such a way thal the pansion cost is a substantially level
percentage of curment and fuluré pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualfied actuaries
on the basis of valualions using a prospactive banefit mathod,

The TPS is a8 mulll-employer scheme and there is insufficlent information available to usa defined benefit
accounting. The TFS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as
an axpanse in the income statement in the periods during which sanices are rendarad by employess.

Bedfordshire Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a fundad scheme, The assels of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS
liabilities are measured using the prajected unil credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a
high quality corporata bond of equivalent lerm and currancy ta the Eabilities. The actuarial valuaticns are
oblained at least iriennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating
surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settiements and
curtailmants. They are included as pan of staff costs as incurred,

Met interest on the net defined benefil Bzbility/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Incame and comprises the interest cost an the defined benefi cbligation and interest income on the schame
assels, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to diseount the benefit obligations. The differance between the interest income on the scheme assels
and the actual return on the scheme assels (s recognised in interest and other finance costs,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses in (he
slatements of comprahensive income.

Shorl term Employment benefits
Shoet term employrment benefits such as salares and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised
as an expensa in the year in which the employees render service 1o the Callage. Any unused benefils are

accrued and measwed as the additional amount the College expects lo pay &= a result of the unused
entitlamant.
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Motas to the Accounts (continued)
1 Stalement of accounting Policies and astimation technigques (continuead)

Intangible fixed assels

Intangible assets are capitalised al cost and are amortised over their estimated useful economic lile.
Purchased computer software s amortised over 4 years

A revlew for impaiment of Intangible fixed asset is camied out annually 1o consider if evenls or changes in
circumstances indicala thal the camying amount of any such asset may not ba recaovarable.

Tanglble fixed asseis

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalrment
lozses, Certaln Hems of fixed assels that had been revaluad fo fair valua on or prior Lo the date of ransition to
tha 2019 FE HE SORP, are measurad on the basis of deamed cost, baing the revaleed amounl gl the date of

that transition.
Where pars of a fixed asset have different useful ivas, they are sccounted for as separate ilerns of ixed asssls,

Land and buildings

Land and buildings inherited from the lecal education autharity arg slaled in the baktance shest al valualion on
the basls of depreciated replacement cost as the open markel value for existing use s nol readily obtainable.
The associated credit is includad in the revaluation reserve. Building improvements made since incorporation
are inchuded in the balanca shaat al caost,

Freshold buildings are depreciabed on a siraight line basis over thelr expected useful economic e 1o the
College. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings over the period af their
useul economic life.

. Freshold buildings Ower pericds of 36 io 65 years
. Leasehold buildings Over langth of lease
Bullding improvements 10 years

Freshaold land #s not depreciated as it is considersd (o have an infinite wsaid life,

Whera land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated
a5 above, The related grants are credited to a deferred capital grant account, and are releasad 1o tha incoma
and expenditure account cwver the expecied uselul economic life of the related asset on a basis consislant

with the depreciation policy.

a2
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Mates to the Accounts (continued)
1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques {continuad)
Tangible fixed Assets (continued)

Finance cosis, which are directly afiributable to the construction of land and buildings, are not capitalised
as pari of the cost of those assets,

A review for impaiement of a fixed assel is caried oul If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
camying amount of any fived assel may not ba recoverabla,

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the iransitional provision 1o retain the book valua of land and
buildings. The land was revalued in 2016.

Subsequent expendifure on axisting fixed assets

Where significant expenditure is Incurred on langible fixed assets it s charged o the income and expenditure
account in the period it is Incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which case il is capialisad
and depraciatad on tha relevant basis,

Bulldings owned by third parties

Where land and buildings are used, but the legal righls are held by a third party, for example a chantable
trust, they are only capitalised if the College has rights or access to ongoing future economic benald. These
assels are then depreciated over thelr expected useful economic life,

Equipment

Equipmant costing less than £1,000 per Individual item is written off to the Income and expandiiure account in
the period of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised at cost. Equipment inheriled from the local education
authority is Included in the balance sheet al valuation.

Inherited equipment has been depreciated on a straight-ine basis over its remaining usaful economic life 1o
the College of between one and lhree years from incorporation and Is now fully depreciated. Al other
equipment |5 depreciated over Its useful economic life as follows:

¢ plant machinery and genaral equipment 10 years on a straighi-line basis
« motor vehigles S years on a straighl-line basis
« COmpuber equipmaant 4 years on a siraight-line basis
« fixtures and fittings 10 yaars on a siraighi-line basis

A review for impairment of a fixed asse! is camied out if events or changes in circumstances Indicate that
the camying value of any fixed assel may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assels and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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Motes lo the Accounls (continuead)
1 Statement of accounting Policies and estimation techniques (continued)

Equipmant feantinugd)

Where aquipment is acquired with the aid of spacific grants, it Is capltalised and depreciated in accordance
with the above policy, with the related grant being credited to a deflemed capital grant accownt and released lo
the income and expenditure account over the expeclad vseful economic life of the related aquipment,

Borrowlng cosis
Borrowing coslts are recognised as expenditure in the perod in which they are Incurred.

Leased assets

Costs in respect of operaling leases are charged on a straight-re basis over tha lease term 1o the
Statement of comprehensive Income and Expenditure. The Collage had no assals on finance leases a5 al
July 2022, Any lease pramiums or incantives relating to leases signed afler 1 August 2014 are spread over he

minimum lease term.
Investmenis
Irvestments in subsidiaries are accounted for al cost less impairment In the Individual financial statements,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of thoir cost and not realsable value, Whera necessary, provision is made
for absalete, slow-maving and defective stocks,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposils repayable on demand &nd overdrafts. Deposits are repayable cn
damand il they are in practice available within 24 hours without panalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in vakse. An investment qualiies s a cash equivalent when it has maturity

of 3 months or bass from the date of acquisition,
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Hotes to the Accounts [continued)
1 Stalement of accounting Policies and estimation technigues {continued)
Financial liabilities and egquity

Financial Eabilities and equity are dassified according 1o the subsiance of the financial instrumant's contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form,

All loans, invastments and short term deposiis held by the Group are clessifiad as baskc financlal instruments in
accordance wilh FRS 102, These nstruments are initially recorded at the transaclion price less any transaction
cosls (historical cost). FRS 102 raqguires that basic financial instruments are subsequanitly measured at
amartised cost, however the Collaga has calculated that the difference batwean the historical cost and amartised
cost basis is nol material and so thesa financial instrumanis are sialed an he balance sheet al historical cosi.

Loans and investmenis that are payahle or recaivable within ane year ara nof discounted.
Taxation

Thie College is considered 1o pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule § Finance Act 2010 and  therefara
il meels the definition of a charitsble company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
College is pofentially exempt from taxation In respect of income or cagital gains received within categories
covaned by Chagler 3 Parl 11 Corporation Tax Adf 2010 or Saction 258 of the Taxation of Chargaable Gains Act
1582, to the extent that such incoma or gains are applied exclusivaly bo chasitable purposes.

Thee Collage is partially exempt in respect of Valee Added Tax, so that i can only recover a minor element of
WAT charged on fls inputs. lmecoverabla WAT on inputs ks included in the costs of such inputs and added to the
cost of angible fixed assels as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assats by nature.

The College’s subsidiary companias are subject to corporation tax and VAT in the samea way as any commarcial
organisation,

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when
the college has a present legal or constructive obigation as a resull of a past event
it Is probable that a transfer of economic benelil will be required Lo seithe the obligation, and
= areliable estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the effect of the iime value of money i3 material, the amount expected to be required to seftle the

obilgation is recognised al present value using 8 pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is
recognized as a finance cost in the stalement of comprehensive income In the period it arizes.
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Motes to the Accounts {(continuad)
1  Statement of accounting Policies and astimation techniguas (continuaed)

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainly
In preparing these finandial slalements, management has made the following judgerments:

» Determine whather leases entered nto by the College either as a lessor or a lessee ane oparaling or
finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.

« Determine whether there are indicalors of impaikment of the group's tangible assels, mcluding
goodwil. Factors laken Inle consideration In reaching such a decision includa the economic viabilty
and expected future financlal performance of the assal and where It is a component of a larger cash-

ganerating unil, the viahilily and expacted future parfformance of that unit.
Othar key sources of estimation uncerlainty

s Tangible fved assels

Tangible fixed assels, olher than lwvesiment properlies, are depreciated over thelr useful lives laking
into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values
are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors, In re- sssessing assel lves,
factors such as technological Innovation and mainténance programmes are taken info account.
Residual value assessments consider issuas such as fulure marked conditions, the remaining life of

the asset and projected disposal values.

o Local Governmend Pansion Schema

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefil Fabllity depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. Tha
assumptions used In determining the net cosl (income) for pensions inclede the discount rate. Ay
changes In these assumplions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performad at 31 March 2019 has been used by the acluary in valiing tha pensions liabdity al
31 July 2022, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension Eabélity.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

2 Funding council granis

Yoar anded 34 July Year anded 31 July
2022 0F 2021 2021
Group  Colloge Group  College
£7004a £'hi £'000 E'Did
Racurrant grants
Education and Skits Funding Agancy - adult 6,368 6,350 6725 B, T35
Educalion and Skills Funding Agency - 1618 34,918 34,918 X2.843 A2.843
Education and Skills Funding Agency - Apprenticeships 2 23 176 176
Higher Education Funding Councl ki p -] 3ra 584 589
Specific Grants
Education and Skills Funding Agency - other 187 far 411 411
Teachar Ponsion Scheme contribulion grant 834 834 1,027 1,027
Relaases of govarnment capilal grants 2,241 2241 1,728 1,74
Total 45,048 45,048 43,528 43,509
3 Tuition fees and education contracts
Year ended 31 July Year onded 31 July
2032 2022 2021 2031
Group  College Group  Collage
E'000 £'004 £'000 E"00d
Adull aducation foes 1,681 1,643 1,348 1,328
Apprenliceship fees and conlracts §,.220 5.0 4 BT 4,830
Faas for FE loan supported courses ax1 a1 1,075 1,078
Fees for HE loan suppored courses 3,134 3134 3,640 3,640
Total tultion fees T 10866 10,818 10833 10,013
Education conlracts 1383 1,383 1,163 1,183
Total 12229 1218 12,096 12,078
4 Other income
Yoar ended 31 July Yaar ended 31 July
2022 22 201 202
Group  College Group  College
£°000 E'000 £000 £'0i00
Catering and residences 1,380 &1 505 397
Oshear income genorating activities 1,926 1.204 1,243 495
Cehar grant incoma 181 194 &6 ]
Coronavius Job Retention Schoema - - 185 -
Tatal 3497 2,256 2,002 1,362
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Motes to the Accounts {continued)

§ Investment income
Year endod 31 July Year ended 31 July

2022 20022 20 2021

Group College Group  Colloge

E'D0 E'00D £5000 £'000

O imvastiment inoome 350 T3 1] 60
Caher inlers! recahable & & 1 ]
358 Td 1 Gl

6 Staff costs - Group

The gverage number of persons (inchading key management personnel) employed by the
Group durag tha year, describad aa ful-ime equivalants, was:

2022 0
Mo, Mo,
Teaching staff 842 B30
Hon-taaching stall 267 2E2
809 g12

Slafl costs for the above parsons
2032 201
£'000 £°0040
Wageos and salarkas 28,7103 27 584
Social securily costs 2,582 2473
Dthar pengion cosls 6,014 5,674
Payrall sub total 38,299 35,820
Contracled out stalling servioes 478 328
ae6T7 36,148
Fundamental restracturing cosis - contractual 0 L]
nan- Li] L]

contractal

8,677 36,148
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MNotes to the Accounts {continued)
& Staff cosis - Colloge only

Thammgammfmpumrmdm&utwmmmm]ampwwm
Cofiege during ha year, described as Rull-ima aquivalents, was:

s 2021
Mo, Mo,
Teaching stadf 642 B30
Wown-lmaching staif 233 250
ETS aaon

Staff costs for the above persons
2022 204
£°000 £'000
Wages and salaries 28,532 26,678
Social security coals 2,643 2,440
Cither pension costs 5,298 5,64
Payroll sub total 37073 34,782
Contracled oul slalfing services aFe 324
AT 451 35,110
Fundamental resirectsing costs « contrachual i ] a
e~ i i

conlrachual

37,451 35,110
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

6 Staff costs - Group and College

Hey management parsanmel

Key managamenl parsormel are those persons hoving eulhosity and responsibility for planning, directing and
controling the activilles of the Group and arg represented by the College Leadership Taam which comprises the

mpﬂ.m:;ﬂﬂ Principals, and Dirsclors of Finance, Human Resowrces, Organksafional Developmant and Salas
.

Emaluments of Koy managemant porsonnal, Accounting Officer and ather highar paid siafl

2022 2021
Mo, No,
The nimbar of key managemend personnel including the Accounting Officer was: a T

The number of key management personnel and othar staff who recalved snnusl emolumeants, exciuding pension
contribulions and amployars nabona insuranca But including benafits in kind, in tha foliowing ranges was:

Key management Other staff
personnel

2 2021 2022 2
M. M. Mo Ha.
E15,000 o £19.999 1 (1] 0 (1]
60,000 1o £64 995 i] 1] T a
E65,000 10 £69, 958 a 1] 3 1
E70,000 in E74 554 a 1] (1] a
ET5.000 o £75,559 i 3 a il
E00,000 b E84,558 2 i a a
£50,000 to £54,999 2 2 0 1]
E100,00 1o £104, 980 a 1 ] (1]
E£105,000 to £110,000 1 (1] 1] (1]
£180,000 o E184,999 a 1 a 1]
£185,000 to E189 998 1 i 1] 4]
& T 10 [

Key managamant personnel emolumanls sne made up as followa:
022 2021
£'o0n E'DOD
Salarias 733 B4
Bemnafits in Kind 18 13
Pension conbribulions 148 127

Total Key management personal emolumants 898 834
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
B Stalf costs - Group and College

The abewve emclumants includs amaunls payable 1o the Accounting Orfficer (who is also tha highest paid

alficer) of;
2022 2021
£0aa it
Salarias 17E 174
Benafis in kind 15 12
Pension coniributions 34 3z
277 218

e

Tha governing body has adopted AcC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code in July 2018 and will assess pay in
fine wilh I8 principles in fultine

The remuneration packsge of Key managemant staff, including the Principal and Chisf Execulive, is subjoect 1o
annual review by the Remuneration Commities of fha governing body who use banchmarking information to
provide objective guidanca,

The Principal and Chigf Executive réports o tha Chair of Governing Council, who undertakes an annual

ravienw of har parformance againsl e college’s overall objectives using bolh qualitative and quaniftative
maasures of pedarmance.

Refatianship of PrincipalfChiel Executive pay and remuneraion axpressed as a multiple

2022 201
£'000 000
wwmwmuimuWhurlham&ﬁmdﬂ £.05 587
Principal and CEO's lotal remuneration &3 8 multiple of &34 T
the modian of all staff : ;
7 Other operating expenses
Yoar anded 31 July Yoar endad 31 July
022 2022 206 2021
Group  Colloge Group  Collage
£'000 £°000 £'000 000
Teaching costs 6,270 5.270 4,371 4,371
Mon-toaching costa 5,206 5.1ar 5,228 5,607
Premises costs 4 840 4730 4,360 4,285
Total 15,325 15,707 13,888 14,269
Other operating expanses Include: 2022 p22
E'000 £'000
Auditor's remuneration:
Financiol statomants sudit 54 A1
Inbernal sudit 40 2r
Profit{Loss) on disposal of tangibla fived assal 3 {600)

Hirg of pssats undar operating leases 474 486
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

Ta, Access and participation spending

Year endod Yaar cnded
3 July 31 Juily
2023 221
Collogo Collogo
£00s EODDs
Aocess Invesimant 223 304
Fassarch and evalwation 11 5
Dizability supgporl | 11
Financial suppart (o sludenis 3 13
Total 246 333
8 Interest payable - Group and College
Year ended 3 July Year endad 31 July
22 2022 2031 2021
Group  Collegs Group  College
E'0DD £1000 £°0:00 E'D00
On bank bans, gverdrafte and other loans: G 650 &73 G673
Met interes: an dalined pension Eabllity (nota 23) 541 581 G24 524
Total 1,23 1,21 1,197 1,187

9 Taxation - Group only

Tha Collage is an exempl Charily and i therefore broadly exampt from corparation tax on it activilies.

10 Surplus on continuing operations during the period

The Surplus on contimeing operafions for the year is made up s

Tollows:

Collage surplus for the period

Prioe yass distributable profits generaled by subsidiary
undertakings transfemad o the College under Gifl Akd,
Swplus on Acguisilon

(Loss) Surphus genarated by subsidiary undertakings

2022
E'D00

155
0

i}
43

2021
E000

(58]

148
{124)

204
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

11 Intangibile fixed assets (Group)

Total
£'oon
Coesl
AL 1 August 2021 BFT
Addilicns 353
Ak 3 July 2022 1,240
Deproclation
Al T August 2021 o2
Charge for ihe yoar 104
AL 31 July 2022 404
Met book value at 31 July 2022 a34
Ha book value at 31 July 2021 575

|
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[PCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFOMAD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTON
RECRUITMENT AND TRAINBNG LTD)

Motes to the Accounis (continued)
12 Tangible fixed assels (Group)

Lane and Equipment  Assets in the Talal
buildings Coursa of
Construction
Fraahold
£'000 £'0400 E000 E'0d40
Cost or valuation
At 1 fugust 2064 154,727 18357 4 350 177 434
Additions 1157 2,150 7,124 10,431
Transfar sssets to Imieskment Propary {1.200] - - (1,200)
Re-classification from assels under consiruclion 4 448 - [4,448) 4
Disposals - {41) - {41)
AL 31 Jduly 2022 150,132 20,466 7,026 186,624
Dapreciation
At August 2024 2T 028 5,903 - 36,801
Changa tor the yaear 3047 1,678 - 5625
Eliminations in respect of disposals - (A1) - 41)
At 3 July 2022 30,976 11,539 - 43,515
Met book value at 31 July 2022 128,156 8,827 7,026 144,109
Met book valus at 31 July 2021 127 E54 8,455 4350 140,503




BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

(INCORPORATING BEDFORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PROFESSIONAL SERACES LTD AND ASTOM
RECRUITMEMT AMD TRAINIFG LTD)

Motas to the Accounts (continuad)

12 Tangible fixed assets (Collage only)

Land aned Equipment  Assets in the Total
budiciings Course of
Construction
Freahod
E'Q00 £'000 £°000 £'000
Cost ar valuation
AT August 2021 164,727 18,028 4,350 177,105
fdditions 1,157 2,150 7124 10,431
Transfer assals to Invesimen] Property * {1,200} - = {1,200
Re-classificalion from assets undar conslraction 4,448 - {4,448) 0
Dispogals - {41} - (41}
AL 3 July 2022 159,132 20,137 702G 186,295
Depreciation
A1 August 2021 2T023 8,609 . 5,538
Charge for the year 3947 1,685 - 612
Eliminatian in respect of disposals - {41) 2 (41)
At 31 July 2022 30,876 11,233 - 42,209
Met bock value at 31 July 2022 128,156 8,904 TG 144,086
Mt baok vahse a1 31 July 2021 127,654 8,419 4,350 1420467

Land, buddings and equipment wers inharited from the lozal autharily on 1 Apdl 1993, Inkerited land was valsad at

apen markel value for ‘College’ use and bullcings af depreciated cost, by a fem af indepandent charlansd sunsayos.
Inheriled equipment is now fully written off. If inharited land had not besen valued # would have been included a2 nil

value &3 no coralderalion was pald,

On 1 August 2018 the Callege acquired Tresham Collegs for Further and Higher Education, Their fooed assals have
baen incheded above based upon a valuation canded out by Lambarl Smith Hamplon wsing surveyors negisiened with
the Foyal insliiution of Chartered Surveyors on a fair value existing use basis,

* The College Board agreed to pursue the oplion to lease Triumph Way, Kempsion to external comganies in March
2022, Tha properly wag valued al £1.2m in December 2021,



BEDFORD COLLEGE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

{INCORFORATING BEDWORD COLLEGE SERVICES LTD, BEDFORD COLLEGE PRHOFESSIONAL SERVICES LTD AND ASTON

HECRUITMENT AMD TRAINING LTD)
Naotes to the Accounts (continued)

13 Mon-gurrent lnvestments

The College owns 100 per cent of the issued shanes of Badlond Collage Serdoes Limited, Badiond College
Profassional Services Limited snd Aston Recuitment and Training Lid, All companies ane incorparalad In
England and Wales. The principal activily of Bedford College Sarvices Limiled & hospitality and alsuwe
senvices. The princpal aclivily of Bedlord Collegs Professional Services is employment services, The
principal activily of Aslton Recrultment and Treining is tha delivery of iraining senices.

14 Trade and other recelvables

Girap College Group Collizgpa
2022 2022 2021 iyl
£000 E'000 £°0040 £'000
Amounts falling due wilhin ong year:
Trade mecelvables 2,693 2,578 2,255 2,213
Oithar Dablors 102 a5 187 180
Prapayments and acced income B.0aa B.oid 2,667 264
Taotal 10,884 10,689 E,108 5,037
15 Current investments
Group College Group Caollago
20 2022 2021 201
£5000 £'000 £'000 £000
Short tarm deposils 2,005 2,005 3,005 3,005
Total 2,005 2,005 3,005 300%

Dépasits are hald with banks and building socielies operating in tha Londan market and hoensed by the
Financial Conduet Aulhorily wilh more than thres months maturily al the balance shee: date. The

interast rates koo these daposils are flxed for the duration of the depasit at time of placamant.
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ECRUITMENT AND TERAINING LTI
Motes to the Accounts (continued)

16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Groug Caollage Group Collaga

2022 2022 201 201

£'000 E'a00 E'I0 £'000

Bank loans and owvardralla 515 518 483 483

Faymants racahed in advance . - 63 K]

Trade payablos 932 811 1,161 1,1

Ampunis owed ko group undartakings:

Subsidiary undariakings - 104 . 106
Cihar taxalion and social securily 1,138 a41 1,089 &1
Acciuals and defermed Incoma 6,128 5988 6,865 6827
Other creditars 213 129 280 196
Deferred income - pavernment capilal grants 2432 2,432 2,118 2,118
Amounis owed ko the ESFA 1oy 107 2a3 253
Total 11,462 11427 12,312 12,084
17 Creditors: amounts falling due afler one year

Graup Colloga Group Collago

2022 2023 2001 20

£7a00 £'00e) £'000 £'000

Baink loans 8,462 8452 8,967 B.BET
Drafarred Incame - governmend capiisl granis 80,435 60,435 65,438 65,438
Total 7% Ga,8a7 4,405 64,405
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Motes to the Accounts {continued)
18 Maturily of debt

{a] Loans are repayabls as follows

Bank laars and overdrafls apes repayaiblo s foliows!

Graup Coliaga Group Callege

a2 2022 FaiFdl 2021

£'000 E°00a £'000 E' 0}

In one yeer or kess 515 518 483 483
Batwean one and two years 5448 548 515 15
Betwaen two and five years 1,858 1,856 1,747 1,747
In five years or mone 6,048 6,048 6,705 i, 7085
Total B,967 B,067 8,450 8,450

Bank loans are secured upan the ireehaold land and buildings at the College’s Windmill Avenue,

Kettaring camgus, and its Oakley Road, Corby campus.

The Katlering loan {E7.082m) incurs interest & rate of 6 85% and capital repayments ara madea

over its 25 vear berm. [t will be fully repaid in 2033,

The Cortry loan (£5.232m) Incurs intarest al rate of 5.91% and capital repaymants 8n0 made over

ik 25 waar g, 1L will be fully repedd in 2036,

18  Provisions
Group
Defined benafit Dilapidations Othar Tatad
Ohligations

£'000 £000 £'000 o0
AL August 2021 35,677 1027 G55 a7, 350
Transferred from ncome and expanditune account (35,677} 60 148 (29, 200)
At 31 July 2022 0 1087 03 5159
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

18 Provisions
Collage
Defined banaflt  Dllapidations Cithar Total
Obligations
E'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
AL Auguesd 201 35,677 1027 Liiry] 3r. 3056
Transformed from income and expandilure account (35,677) &0 114 (20.220)
At 31 July 2022 i 1,087 720 8,076
20 Cash and cash squivalonts
At 1 Auigust Cazh Ot hier At
2029 flows changeas July
2022
£°000 E'000 £'000  E"000
Cash and cash eguivalanis 10,685  [3.344) = 7,351
Total 10,695  [3,344) - 7,351
21 Capital commitmants
Group and College
2022 2021
" 00 £'000
Cammilments conbracied for al 31 July 2022 2,033 2,662
Authorised but nol contracted 31 July 2022 23177 7,833

22 Lease Obligations
Al 31 July the Gollage had minimum leasa payments under non-canceliable operaling leases as follows:

Group and Collage
22 2021
E'00n E'00a
Future minimum lease paymaents dus
Land and buildings
Mat later than one year 419 e
Later than one year and not later than five years 1.532 1,433
later than five years 4353 4 483

8,304 6,295
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RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING LTD)

MNotes to the Accounts [continued)

23 Retirement banefits

The College’s employess belong (o hwa principal post-amploymeant benafit plans: the Teachers’ Pansion Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related siaff. and the Wassex Local Govennment Pansion Scheme (LGPS) for non-

bpaching stalf, which i$ managed by Bediprd Borowgh Council. Bath are maili-employer dafined-banalil plans.

The pansion cosls ase assessed in accordance wilth the advica of indepandent quaified actuaries. The latest formal
actuaral valuation of the TPS was as al 31 March 2016 and of tha LGPS 31 March 2018

Tatal pansion cost for the year 2022 2021
c'ood £\t

Teachers Pansion Schame: contributions paid 2,500 2,848

Othar Pension Schames a0 1B4

Local Governmenl Penslon Schame:

Conlributisng pasd aEF 1034

FRS 102 (2B) chamge 1,862 1610

Charga ko the Statement of Comprehensive Income 2,824 2,844

Enhenced pansion charge to Statamant of

Comprahensive Incomea - £

Total Pansion Cost for Year 6,014 BTG

Thera were no oulstanding or prepald contributions at either the beginning or end of the fnanciad year. Conlributions
amounting ko £470,000 (2021 - £437,000) were payable ta the schema at 31 July 2022 and ara incluted in creditorns.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statulory, conlributory, defined benefit schema, governed by the Teachars’
Pansion Scheme Regulalions 2014, These regulations apply to teachers in schools, callages and oiher educational
establishmants. Membership is automatic for teachers and leclurers ol alighbs institufions. Teachers and lecturars are

able 1o opt out of the TPS,

The TPE is an unfunded scheme and membess contibute on a ‘pay as you g0’ basis = these confributions, akng with
those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequar under arangements govarnad by the above Acl. Retirement and
ofher pension benefils are paid by public funda provided by Parliament,

Undar the definiions sal out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS 5 a mulil-empioyer pansion plan, The Collsge i unabls 1o
idenlify its shane of the underlying assets and labifites of the plan.

Accordingly, the College has laken advamage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has socounted for ils confribulions to the
sehoma 8% i il were a defined-contribution plan. The College has sel out above the informaion available on the plan and

ther implications for the Colege in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

23 Raotirament banefits

Teachers' Ponsion Scheme (continued)

Tha valuation of the TPS is carried oul in line with regulations mada under the Public Service Pension Act 2013, Valuations
credit tha leachers’ pengion account with & real rale of retun assuming funds are investad in notional irvestments that
produce thal real rata af reurn,

Tha latest actuarial review of tha TPS was camiad out as at 31 March 2016, The veluation reparl was published by the
Depariment for Education (the Department in April 2019, The valuation rapaned 1olal schama liabilities (pansions currently
in payment and the esfmatod cost of fulure benefits) for service 1o the affective date of 218 billion, and notinal Essats
(eslimatad fulure contributions togather with the notonal invesimants held at the valuation date) of 194 bilkon giving &
notional pest service deficll af £22 billlon,

As a resull of the valustion, new employer conlribution rabes were set at 23.68% of pensicnable pay from Septembar 2018
amwands (compared to 16.48% dunng 2018/9. DIE has agreed o pay a teacher pansion amployer contribufion grant to coves
tha additional costs during the 2021-22 academic year,

A full copy of the waluation report and supporting documentafion can be found on the Teachers’ Pension Scheme website,
The pansion costs paid io TPS in the yaar amounted to £2,980,000 (2020: £2,848,000)

Local Governmank Pension Schome

The LGPS is a funded defined-banafit plan, with the assels held in soparsts funds sdministered by Bedhord Barough
Council. The lokal conlributian made for the year ended 31 July 22 was £1,330,000, of which amployer’s contribulions
iolalled £962,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £368,000, The agreed contribution rates for fulure years are 18.9
" for emplayers and range from 5.5% 1o 7.5% cant for employeas, depending on salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The foliowing information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to 31
duly 20232 by a qualified indepandent actuary.
AL July 2022 At 31 July 2021

Reta of increass in salaries 1.65% 1.75%
Future panzions incresses 2.50% 2.60%
Discount rate for schsma lablillies 345% 1.85%
Infledian assumplion (SR 2.50% 2.60%

The current mortality assumptions include sulficient allowance for fulure improvernants in martality rates.
The assurned life expactations on retiremant age 65 arg:
A3 July 2022 A 31 July 2021

years years
Retiring foday
Balas Z1.10 21.80
Férnales 3.7 2450
Rufiring v 20 years
Males &1.90 2280

Famales 25.30 2600

&1
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Motes to the Accounts (continuad)
23 Retiremant benafits

Local Government Pension Scheme (Gonlinued)

Trus Colage™s shara of tha assets in ihe plan and the expected rales of return wene:

Long-ierm rate

of retum

axpacted at 31

July 2022

Equilias 5.00%

Bards 5.00%

Proparty 5.00%

Cash 5.00%
Total market value of assets

Weighted average sxpectad long farm rate 5.00%

al riwrn

Actueal return on plan assels

Fair Value
al 3 July
2022

£:000

39,975
15,050
B.O56
2,500

66481

407

Thie amounl included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined bonefit pansion plan is as follows:

Falr value of plan assols
Presant valuse of plan Eabililies
Met pensions (Habfity)asset &5 at 31 July

Long-tamm Fair
rata of Walue ol
raturm a1 July

axpacted at 2021
31 July 2031
£ D00
5.007% 45,706
5.00% 12,208
5.00% §,093
5.00% 1,440
65,447
5.00%
8,536
20z 202
E'D0D £'0D0
il 481 65447
154.913} ‘1I:I|.‘|24!
1,564 (35,677)

62
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Hotes to the Accounts (continued)
23 Retiremant beneafits
Local Governmant Pension Scheme (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehenshe Income in respoct of the plan are as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £1000
Amounts included in stalf costs
Current sarvice cosd 2,738 2,583
Pas! sensce cost o ]
Tatal 2736 2,583
Amounts included in inferesis and other finance costs
Meét intarest cosls G5R1 524
581 253
Amounis recogniged in Other Comprahansive Income
Reeturn on pension plan assets 07 8,538
Changes in assumpiions underlying the presant value of plan Eabilities T3 (8,653)
Amauni recagnized in Other Comprehansive Income 2,120 1,883

The actuarial raport for the local povernmen! pension schame at 31 July 2022 shows an aclusrial gain which has resulted
in @ pension asaot al the sama dala,

We have nol recognised the pension assed as a posifive position bul have instead shown a braak-sven position as thare is
nsufficient evidence lo cancluda that the “assel’ may be available bo reduce future payments.

As assed should only recognised o the extant that tha Collage ks able 1o recaver the surplus alther fraugh reduced
conlribudions in the fubure or refunds from the plan,

Wo have meda further declosurs in the Stralegic Report and in the node on judgements to adequately raflec] is.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
23 Ratiremant benafits
Local Government Pension Scheme [Continued)

Movemant in nel defined benslit (Habilityasset during the year

2022 2021
£7000 E£°000
Surplusi{daficil] m scheme at 1 August (35,677} (35.4246)
Movemend in year,
Current service cost {2, 736) {2,583)
Employer contribulions &e3 1,036
Past sandce cost 41} -
el ierest on he dafined (liabiity Vassal (5481) (524)
Adminisiralion expendes {ra) (63)
Changes in Financial Assyerpdions 38,000 (7.533)
Changes i Demographic Assumpliong ame [624)
Oihar e fano {43T) 1,504
Cither achuarial gens/(lossas) . 2
Actuarial gain or loss 407 B,536
Mat dalined banefil (ability)/asset at 31 July 1,568 [38,677)
Asset and Liability Reconciliation
2022 2021
E'000 £000
Changes |n the present value of defined banefit ebligations
Definad benefit obligations sl start of period 101,124 892,145
Current Senvica cosl 2738 2,58%
Inderesl cost 1658 1,370
Contributions by Schame parlicipants 374 g
Changes in demographic assumplions {3,718} B4
Changes in financial assumnplions [35,000) 7533
Oiher experiénce 437 {1.504)
Eslimabed benafits paid {1,738) {2.040)
Pasi Service casl 41 -
Undafined pension payments (1) i1
Defined benefit obligations af end of period 64,913 104,124
Reconcillation of Assets
Falr value of plan assets at start of perlod 85,447 b6, 719
Intarest on plan assets 1,077 pi1a
Relurn on plan asssts 07 8,534
Other acluarial gaina/{losses) - .
Adminiatealion expansos (T8} (B3]
Employer contributions B 1,036
Contribulians by Schama participants ard 3a4
Estimated banefits paid (1.739) {2,011)

Assote at end of peried 56,481 65,447
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Moles to the Accounts {continued)
24 Related pary transactions

Owing io the nature of the College's operations and the campasilion of the board of govarnors haing
drawn from kocal public and pivae secior organisalions, it is inevitable that ransactions will take place
with organisations in which a member of the board of governces may have an interast. All iransactions
invalving such arganisations are conducled at arm's length and in accordance wilh he College’s financigd
regulations and normal precurémend procedurnes.

The total expenses paid o or on behall of he Govamars during the year was £571: 15 gavemars {2021
£0; 15 gowernors). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other oul af pocket EXPENSEs
incorred  in allending Governor meslings and  charly cvents in thair  officis capaciy.
Ko Govemar has received any rermunaration or waived paymants from the Collage or ils subsidiarias
during the year (2020; Hona).

23 Amounts disbursed as agent

Learmer suppori Tunds

2023 2021
£°000 E'000
Funding body grants — 16-18 7549 B72
Funding bady grants — Advanced Leaming Loans 120 78
Funding body grants - 19+ ar4 182
Funding body grants - residential bursanies g2 8g
Qiher Funding bady granis 129 118
1,464 1.541
Disbursed fo siudents (613) (61E)
Adminisiration costs (68} (68)
Balance unspent as al 31 July, included in creditars 7a3 856
—

Funding body grants ara svailable solely for studants. bn tha majority of instances, the CoSlape only acts
&5 a paying agent. In these circumstances, tho grants and related dishursements are therefars axclsded
Traim tha Statamant of Comprehansive ncomae.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

26 Business Combinalions

On 1 Oclober 2020 the group acquired Aston Recruitment and Training for cash consideration of £1,
Tha invesiment has been accounted fior under the acquislion method.

Recognised amounls of identiliable sssets acoqured and labilities assumid:

Acljustments
Book valug Fair Valug Agcounting Fair Valua
Paodley
E00s E000s E0d0s Eddds
Aszels

Tangibla ] 1] L] 48
Intangible 1] i] a i
44 ] a 44
Sincks 3 (1] [i] 3
Debiors 18 1] 1] 18
Cash at bank and in hand 123 ] 1] 123
Total assals 192 o o 192

Linbllities
De within one yasr fdd) 0 a fad)
Dwa in greater than one yaar = ] a -
Prowislons - 0 i H
Total idantifiable net assats 148 1] 1] 148
Total purchase consideration 0
1448

Surplus on acquisition
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Bedford College
Motes to the Accounts (continuad)

27 Post Balance Sheet Events

Fallowing a révigw by the Offica for Matinal Sialisfics, [ has been formally announced, on 28 November 2022, ihal FE
Colleges and their subsidiaries will be reclassified s forming pen of cendral government secor. This reclassification will
change the framéwork in which College operates.

Having reviewed initial guidanca from the Deparimant for Educabion and the Asscciabion of Colages the Governons da
nol balieve this reclassification has an impact on (e financial resulls prepaned within these inancial statements a8
condilions arose afier the end of the repar g perod.

Thi Colaga will conlinise Io be funded and oparats in the mann e described within (heé membars repofl and &8 such na
adjualbrmanls ldve bian mada in regard to this avent and any potential impacts will ba recognized n fulure sccounting
pariods.

&7



